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BEFORE THE INDIAN CLAIMS CCMMISSION 

CITIZEN BAND OF P(1TAWATOIMI INDIANS OF 
OKLAHOMA, e t  al . ,  

Plaint  i f f  a ,  

T a  PRAIRIE BAND OF THE P(YI'TAWATOEIZE 
TRIBE OF INDIANS, e t  al . ,  

P l a in t i f f s ,  

HANNAHVILLE INDIAN COMMUNITY, e t  a l . ,  

P l a in t i f f s ,  

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
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Decided: February 25, 1976 

F1M)INGS OF FACT ON AWARD AND 
APPORTIONMENT OF ATTORNEYS' FEES 

On the basis  of the en t i r e  record i n  the proceedings involving 

Dockets 146, 15-M and 29-K, the Canmission makes the following findings 

of fact :  

THE FINAL JUDGMEW 

1. On April 19, 1974, the  Caarmission entered a f i n a l  award of 

$2,296,870.70 i n  these three consolidated dockets, 146, 15-M and 29-K, 

jo int ly ,  on behalf of the Potawatomi Tribe or Nation. 34 Ind. C1. Coma. L. 

This award was not appealed, and fuads t o  s a t i s fy  the judgment were 

appropriated by Public Law 93-554, approved December 27, 1974, 88 S t a t .  

1771. The award represented additional canpensation f o r  land which 

was ceded t o  the  United States under the  Treaty of August 29, 1821, 



7 Stat. 203, for a consideration which the CamPiroion held t o  be 

uncoarcionable within the meaning of the Indian Claimr Ccmni8sion kt. 

The land iwolved ia 'approxhately the aouthern two-third8 o f  Bayce 

Area 117 i n  southern Michigan and northern Indiana. 

ATTORNEY CONTBACTS AND PRWISION FOR FEES 

2 -  Docket 146. The p la in t i f fs  i n  Docket 146 are the Citizen Band 

of Potawatomi Indians of Oklahoma, the Potawatomi Nation, and certain w d  

iDdividuala, suing i n  t h e i r  representative capacities. The f i r s t  attorney 

contract was between the Citizen Band of P o t r w a t d  Indians of Q&~&QI[L~ 

and two l aw firme, i.e., Blake, Voorheee d Stewart of New York, N. Ye, 

and Adsme, Ebaee & Culver of Chicago, Illinois. This original codtract, 

No. I-1-Ind. 42065, signed April 17,  1948, approved August 4, 1948, was 

for 10 years, l a t e r  extended 5 years t o  August 4, 1963. I n  May of 1963, 

h i 6  L. Rocbee was added t o  the contract by an amendment. (h July 27, 

1963, a new 5-year contract was entered into between the p la in t i f fs  d 

the Chicago and New York law firms, i.e., Contract 14-20-0200 No. 1837. 

This contract was approved August 28, 1963, and extended by amndmRntr 

t o  August 5, 1978. The addition of Louis L. Rochmea a8 a party t o  t h i s  

contract was approved January 7, 1966, and an rrmeariment t o  the rrwt 

contract was approved February 7, 1973, adding the law firm of Joseph 

and Friedman of Chicago as counsel. A l l  contracts and amendments thereto 

had the approval of the pla in t i f fs  and the Bureau of Indian Affairs. 

The canpensat ion for  attorneys stipulated in the contracts wa8 t o  be 

wholly contingent upon a recovery by the p la in t i f fs  and i n  an amount eclual 



t o  la of any and all sums recovered f o r  the pla in t i f f s .  M r .  Louis L. 

Rochmes is attorney of record i n  t h i s  docket. 

3. Docket No. 15-M. The p l a i n t i f f s  i n  Docket 15-M are  the Pra i r i e  

Band of the  Potawatomi Tribe of Indiana, the Potawatomi Nation and cer ta in  

named individuals suing i n  t h e i r  representative capacit ies . The claim 

o r i g i n d l y  given Docket No. 15 was subsequently severed and re f i l ed  as  

15-C and l a t e r ,  pursuant t o  Camnission order, again severed and designated 

Docket No. 15-M. 

On October 22, 1947, the Pra i r i e  Band entered in to  a 10-year contract ,  

No. 1-1-Ind. 18372, with the  law firm of Stone, McClure, Webb, Johnson, 

and &an of Topeka, Kansas. On November 15, 1947, the  firm was dissolved 

and Robert Stone continued t o  represent the  Pra i r i e  Band a s  i ts  claims 

counsel. The contract  was approved by the Bureau of Indian Affairs  on 

December 19, 1947. On January 19, 1948, the  associat ion of 0. R. McGuire 

as claims attorneys f o r  the  Pra i r i e  Band on the above contract ,  was 

approved. By assignments dated February 9, 1953, approved May 13, 1954, 

James A. McClure, Robert L, Webb and Ralph W. Onan conveyed an in te res t  i n  

the attorney fees t o  Robert Stone and an in te res t  t o  Beryl R. Johnson, 

Under another agreement approved May 13, 1954, Robert Stone aseigned an 

in te res t  i n  the  fees t o  Robert Stone Johnson, the  present attorney of 

record f o r  the  Prairie Band, The assignments of in te res t  approved on 

May 13, 1954, were as  follaws: 0. R. Mcguire, 50%; Robert Stone, 19% 

Robert S. Johnson, 199.; and Beryl L. Johnson, K%. June 17, 1960, 
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two 2-year periods of a t e m i o n  of Contract No. I-1-Ind. 18372 were 

apprwed beginning as of December 19, 1957. Cka Daceanber X i ,  1964, 

the R a i r t e  Band entered in to  contract No. 14-20-0200-1856 with 

Robert Stone Johnson and Beryl R. Johnson for a period of 5 year8 

beginning on D e c d e r  29, 1964. On December 24, 1969 a lo-yeat 

e x t e ~ L - . ~  of th la  contract was apprwed t o  begin on December 29, 1969. 

A l l  contracts and extensiom had the requis i te  tribal and Bun= of 

Indian Affairs approval. 

Contract No. 14-20-0200-1856 recited tha t  Robert Stone and 0. 11. 

McGulre had died and provided, among other things, tha t  the estates  of 

the deceased attorneys should be allowed compe~a t ion  i n  auch sum as 

the  "tribunal * * * awarding a judgment t o  the TRIBE may find equitably 

t o  be due for  the services heretofore rendered under said contract~".  

The above Prair ie  Band contracts provided that  any canpeneation 

for  the  attorneys would be wholly contingent upon a recovery by the 

p la in t i f f s ,  that  the mount of such fee should be determined by the 

Camriseion, and tha t  i n  no event would the fee exceed 10% of the award 

t o  the pla in t i f f s .  

Robert Stone Johnson is the attorney of record i n  Docket 15-M. 

4. Docket 29-K. The p la in t i f f s  i n  b k e t  2 9 4  are  the liannnhville 

Indian Chmmnity, the  Forest County Potawatoml Cammnity, tb Patamtomi 

Indiana of Michigan, Inc., and cer ta in  individuals suing i n  a rapre- 

eentstive capacity. 



On January 5, 1948, the Hannahville Indian Cormunity entered in to  

a 10 year contract  with attorneys Dorr E. Warner of Cleveland, Ohio, 

and Walter H. Maloney, Sr. of Washington, D. C., designated No. I-1-Ind. 

42007. The contract  was approved on March 8, 1948, by the Department 

of the In te r io r ,  Office of Indian Affairs. 

h 3 e r  M r .  Warner's death on a date not disclosed by the record, 

the  Hannahville Indian Ccmnrnity entered i n to  a new 10 year contract  of 

employment with Walter H. Maloney, Sr. ef fect ive  March 8, 1948, designated 

Contract 14-20-0650 No. 983. On March 24, 1964, the Bureau of Indian 

Affairs  approved an assignment by M r .  Maloney, Sr. of h i s  i n t e r e s t  i n  

t h i s  claims contract  t o  h i s  son, Walter He Maloney, Jr. In Nuveinber, 

1964, Mr .  Walter H. Maloney, Jr. made a similar  assignment of h i s  

i n t e r e s t s  i n  the same claim8 contract t o  M r .  Robert C. Bell,  Jr. 

Contract 14-20-0650 No. 983 has been extended twice since 1968 and is  

val id  u n t i l  March 7, 1978. A l l  of the above actions had the  requ is i t e  

approval of p l a i n t i f f s  and the Bureau of Indian Affairs. 

On January 7,  1948, the  Forest County Potawatani Camaunity entered 

in to  a claims employment contract No. I-1-Ind. 42011, e f fec t ive  May 3, 

1948, f o r  a period of 10 years, with M r .  Dorr Warner of Cleveland, Ohio, 

and M r .  Walter He Maloney, Sr. After M r .  ~ a r n e r ' s  death on a date not 

disclosed by the  record, t he  p l a i n t i f f s  entered in to  a new 10 year 

contract No. 14-20-0650 No. 978, with M r .  Maloney, Sr. This contract  

was approved by the Bureau on August 13, 1958, and made ef fec t ive  as  
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of May 3, 1958. In  1963, Mr. 1J.loneyS S t .  assigned h is  interest i n  

the contract t o  h i s  son Walter 8. Maloney, Jr. In N o v d e r ,  1964 

Mr .  Maloney, Jr., made a airPilar assignment of hi8 in te res t  i n  the 

employment contract t o  Robert C. Bell, Jr. This contract haa been 

extended twice since 1968 and is valid u n t i l  May 2, 1978. a1 of the 

above mntrac ts  and a s s i ~ n t s  had the requis i te  apprwal  by p la in t i f f  8 

and the Bureau of Indian Affairs. 

Each of the above contracts provided tha t  i n  the event of the  death 

e i ther  o r  both of the atturneys, the e s t a t e  of the deceased attorney 

the estates of the deceased attorneys, would be alloved compensation 

such sum as the Commissioner of Indian Affairs o r  an appropriate 

court or  tribunal might find equitably due fo r  the services rendered 

by the deceased attorney o r  attorneys, and tha t  the  death of one of the 

attorneys, leaving the other eurviving, would ~ o t  terminate the contract. 

M r .  Robert C. Bell, Jr., attorney of record fo r  the Hannahville 

Indian Camwnity and the Forest County Potawatani Comnrnity, is pet i -  

tioning fo r  a a h  re of the attorneys' fee which may be awarded, for  

himself and fo r  the e s t a t e  of Walter He Maloney, Sr. 

On February 20, 1965, the Potmat& Indians of Indtana and Mlchiga, 

Inc., entered in to  a ten year contract, NO. 14-20-0350 No. 260, with 

Wbert C. Bell, Jr. and Walter He Maloney, Sr. No extension8 of this  

contract are on record with the Canmiasion. On July 16, 1965, the 

p la in t i f f  corporation petitioned for  the right t o  intervene a s  a party 



p la in t i f f  i n  Docket 2 9 4  and other dockets and on March 28, 1972, the  

pe t i t ion  was approved by the Commiclsion. 27 Ind. C1. C a m .  187, 

326 and 327. 

The compensation for attorneys under a l l  of the above contracts was 

made contingent upons% recovery by the  p l a in t i f f s ,  was t o  be fixed i n  

amount by the  Canmission, and the  amount was i n  w event t o  exceed 10% 

of any and a l l  sums recovered by the p la in t i f f s .  

Mr. Robert C. %ell,  Jr., is the attorney of record i n  Docket 29-K. 

5. Deceased Counsel. The attorneys who represented p la in t i f f  i n  

these claims, now deceased, are: 

Dkt. 146 - All members of the  law firm of Adams, Moses and Culver. 
A l l  members of the  law firm of Blake, Voorhees and Stewart. 

Z - 

Dkt. 15-M - Robert Stone 
0. R. McGuire 

Dkt. 29-K - Dorr E. Warner 
Walter H. Maloney, Sr. 

6. Statutory Fee ~ r & i s i o n .  The Indian Claims Comnission Act 

(60 Stat .  1049), under which the claims herein were prosecuted, c o n t a i ~  

the  following provisions (at page 1053) pertaining t o  the allowance of 

attorneys' fees: 

Sec. 15 . . . The4ees of such attorney or  attorneys for 
a l l  services rendered i n  prosecuting the claim i n  question 
whether before the  Carmission or othexwise, sha l l  unless 
the  amount of such fees is st ipulated i n  the approved 
contract between the attorney o r  attorneys and the claimant, 
be fixed by the  Comnission a t  such amount as the Comnission, 
i n  accordance with standards obtaining fo r  prosecuting 
skn i la r  contingent claims i n  courts of law, finds t o  be 



adequate coppensation for  services rendered d reaul t r  
obtained, cowldaring the contingent nature of the cam, 
plu. a l l  re~orrable expenear Fncurred in the proaecutiug 
of the claim; but the amount so fixed by the Carmie8im, 
exclueive of reimbursement of actual expenses, shall not 
exceed 10 per ceatum of the amount recovered Ln any case 

7, Notice t o  the Partiee. 

fees were sent t o  the following persons with an Invitation t o  commcnt 

within two weeks i f  they deuired t o  do so: 

Jake McOullough, Chairnun 
Hennahvllle Indian Comrarnity 
R t .  1, Wilson, Michigan 49896 

Harvey Tucker, Tribal Chieftain 
Haanahville Indian Comntnity 
R t .  1, Wabeno, Wisconsin 54566 

Hone Wallace A. Johnson, Jr, 
Assistant Attorney General 
U. S. Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20035 

BIAS Tribal Operations 
Mtn: Guy W. Love11 
Washington, D, C, 20240 

On July 12, 1974, copies of M r .  Bell 's application for  attorneys' 

fees were sent t o  the following persona with an invitation t o  camrent 

within two weeks i f  they deaired t o  do eo: 

Sally Halfaday, Chairwanan 
Wrnnahville Indian Cormarnity 
Rt, 1, Wilson, Michigan 49896 

Harvey L. Tucker, Chainnan 
Forest &unty Potawatd Camunity 
R t ,  1, Wabeno, Wisconsin 54566 



Mrs. Michael Williams, Co-Chairwanan 
Potawatmi Indians of Indiana and 

Michigan, Inc. 
1520 Ontario Street 
Niles, Michigan 49120 

Howard S t a r r e t t ,  Co-Chainnan 
Potawatomi Indians of Indiana and 

Michigan, Inc. 
419 Weat Railroad Street 
Dowagiac, Michigan 49047 

Michael Wilson, Recording Secretary 
Potawatorai bdians of Indiana and 

Michigan, Inc. 
Box 406 
Dowagiac, Michigan 49047 

Lester  Jessepe, Chairman 
The P r a i r i e  Band of the  Potawatmi 

Tribe of Indians 
616 W. St. John 
Topeka, Kansas 66608 

Jerry  Fox, Chairman 
Cit izen Band of Potawatomi of Oklahoma 
R. 5 ,  Box 79-C 
Shewnee, Oklahoma 74801 

On August 2 ,  1974, copies of M r .  ~ohnson'a and M r .  Rochmes' 

joint appl ica t ion for at torneys '  fees  were sent t o  the following persona, 

with an i n v i t a t i o n  t o  comment within two weeks i f  they desired to  do so: 

Jerry Fox, Chairman 
Business Camnittee 
Ci t izen Band of Potawatmi Indians 

of Oklahoma 
R. 5, Box 79-C 
Shawnee, Oklahoma 74801 

Lester Jessepe, Chainnan 
The Prairie Band of the  Potawatani 

Tribe of Indians 
616 We St, John 
Topeka, Kansas 66608 



Bhlrponre of Parties,  None of the p la in t i f f8  or their officera,  

of applicatioa for attomeyd fear. 

Thr defendant responhci by l e t t e r  f r m  the Department of Jur t ice  

dated krgurt 21, 1974, t o  the patit ionr fir fees i n  theae three docketr. 

Attached were l e t t e r s  f ran th8 Camtisaicmer of Indian Affairs and frm 

t h e  Alsoclate Sol ic i tor  ~ n d i m h f f a i r r ,  Deputmeat of Interior.  They 

took no porit ion regarding the fee except t o  note tha t  it should not 

exceed 10% of the award, 

pEKVIQsS OF COUNSEL 

9, Re-Ti t le  Phase, On July 17, 1951, counsel for  p l a i n t i f f s  

i n  Docket 146 f i led  a pe t i t  ion s ta t ing a claim for  the lands ceded by 

the Treaty of August 29, 1821, located i n  Michigan ud Indiana. 

On November 14, 1947, counael for p l a in t i f f s  i n  Docket 15-M f i l e d  

a pet i t ion  which included t h i s  claim. Thia pe t i t ion  warr receivcd by 

the CasPi8crion as Docket 15, This claim was severed and refiled as 

Docket 1 5 4  by the s a w  attorney8 on S e p t A r  23, 1949. On September 30, 

1953, the Cammiraion ordered that t h i e  claim be re f i led  as Docket 15-M, 

and it war ro re f i led  cm November 30, 1953. 

a;l May 18, 1948, cwxmel fo r  plaintlffr i n  Docket 2 9 4  f i l ed  a 

pet i t ion  designated Dacket No. 29, which incLuded thirr c l a h r  . Bj - order 
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of the  Commission, t h i s  claim along with several  others was subsequently 

r e f i l e d  a s  Docket 29-6, On September 30, 1953, the  Coumisclion ordered the 

4 th  cause of act ion (claim under the  Treaty of 1821) i n  Docket 29-A t o  

be separated and f i l e d  a s  Docket 29-K. The pe t i t ion  i n  Docket 29-Kwas 

s o  f i l e d  on October 30, 1953. 

The Comnission's order of September 30, 1953, which di rec ted  the 

r e f i l i n g  of these claims under the  present docket numbere a l s o  consolidated 

those dockets f o r  t r i a l  with dockets 13-M, 18-Q, and 40-K. The three 

addi t ional  dockets involved claims of Chippewas and Ottawas t o  the  aame 

land. P l a h t i f f s  i n  those dockets were represented by aeparate counsel 

who a r e  not involved i n  t h i s  f ee  apportionment proceeding. 

TITLE PHASE 

10. On September 11 and 12, 1956, a hearing waa held on the  i ssue  

of t i t l e  t o  Royce Area 117 in  southern Michigan and northern Indiana. 

Defendant took the  posi t ion  a t  the  t r i a l  tha t  p l a i n t i f f s  tn the s i x  

consolidated dockets had ne i the r  recognized nor aboriginal  t i t l e  t o  

any portion of Royce Area 117. Defendant vigorouely maintained t h i s  

poeit ion throughout the  t r i a l  by crose examination of p l a i n t i f f s '  expert 

witnesses and through the t e s t h o n y  of defendant's own e x p e r t  witnear. 

11. Counsel fo r  dockets 146 and 15-Mc(Citizen Band of Potmatomi 

and P r a i r i e  Band, respectively)  acted cooperatively, introducing 109 

exhibits and the  testimony of an expert witness, Dr. Anthony Wallace, 

an anthropologist.  In h i s  testimony and through the  documents introduced 

in  evidence, Dr .  Wallace sought to es tabl ieh  t h a t  in the  area routh of 
b 

the Kalamazoo River, Potavatomi Indfam exerted exclusive use and 



occupancy for  many year. prior t o  the t reaty date in 1821 and tha t  

the Ottawas probably controlled the northern part  of the area. 

Defeadant'r counsel crorr exanined Dr. Wallace in m attempt t o  rhaw 

that  Potmatomi ure and occupancy of any part of W c e  117 W 8 S  

non- B X C ~ U ~  ive . 
12. Counsel in  Docket 29-K did not have an expert wStner8 but 

introduced 36 axhibite. C~unre l  for defendant objected t o  the a b i r a i o n  

of the exhibit8 an the ground that ,  i n  violation of Carmiasion ruler, 

counrel for Docket 2 9 4  had not  submitted h i s  exhibits in  advance of the 

t r i a l  day thu8 depriving defenoe counrel of an opportunity of exmiaing 

them for the purpose of making porrible objection8 t o  the i r  admirsion 

rubrtantiva grounds. The Comnirsion admitted the exhibits, giving defend- 

ant1@ counrel and cwnre l  for  the other docketa 30 day8 in  which t o  examine 

tho exhibits and make any objections they f e l t  proper. The exhibita 

conristed of docunente relative t o  the 1821 t r e a t y  of ceraion, eeveral 

maps, congrerrional reports concerning pzivate legis la t ion conferring 

on the Court of Claime jur i rdict ian t o  adjudicate the c l a w  of Potmatmi  

Indians i n  Wisconsin for  t h e i r  alleged ihare of unpaid annuitie8, and 

other material intended t o  er tabl i rh  counrel'r position that h i s  client8 

were Proper par t ier  and that a t  the t i m e  of the 1821 Treaty the potaw.tomi8 

were a 8ingle land-owning entity and not broken up into five reparate Imd- 

awning bands, Counael offered no evidence on the ielrue of Potawatami 

abor-bingl uro-and occupancy of the area in su i t .  

13. Comeel for  docketr 13-H, 18-Q, and 4 0 4  introduced 113 exhibit' 

in evidence and the teotimoay of Dr.  r C Stewart, ~ t h ~ ~ o l o g ~ ~ *  
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In the  course of h i s  testimony, D r .  Stewart s t a t e d  t h a t  he was in  sub- 

s t a n t i a l  agreement with Dr .  Wallace concerning the extent of Potawatmi 

and Ottawa occupancy of Royce Area 117,and t h a t  he had found no evidence 

i n  h i s  research of the  existence of a permanent continuing nation of 

Potawatomis a t  the  time of the  1821 Treaty or  p r io r  thereto. Defendant's 

counsel cross-examined Dr.  Stewart a t  some length, pa r t i cu la r ly  regarding 

his location of c e r t a i n  Ottawa vi l l ages  on the Kalamazoo River a t  the  

time of the cession. Counsel f o r  Docket 29-K examined D r .  Stewart rolely 

f o r  the purpose of t e s t i n g  h i s  conclusion t h a t  the Potawatoanis were n o t  a 

s ing le  land owning p o l i t i c a l  e n t i t y  in  1821. On red i rec t  examination by 

counsel for the  Ottawas, counsel attempted t o  j u s t i f y  D r .  Stewart 's use 

of what defendant ' a counsel had c r i t i c i z e d  as  "secondary aourcedf , i n  

locating Ottawa v i l l a g e s  i n  the ceaeion area. 

14. Defendant'e caunsel introduced 65 exhibi ts  and the  testimony of 

D r .  Eminie  Wheeler Voegelin, an anthropologist and h i s t o r i a n  from the 

University of Indiana and Director of the  Ohio Great Tiakes Research 

Project .  D r .  Voegelin t e s t i f i e d  t o  Indian occupancy on the  ceded area  

during the  French period which ended i n  1763, the  Br i t ieh  period extending 

from 1763 t o  1783, and the  period of American sovereignty from 1783 up 

t o  the  time of the 1821 Treaty. H e r  wr i t ten  report  contained nothing 

about event8 a f t e r  1821. In response t o  questions of defendant's 

counsel, Dr.  Voegelin t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  although Potawetad and Ottawa 

Indians were found i n  the  subject  area a t  v a r i w  timer, t h e i r  and 

occupancy was a t  best j o i n t  becauee she could not find any "rigid 

boundaries" between the  two groups of Indians. She also t e r t l f i e d  t h a t  
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in  her opinion and an the bar i r  of the evidence rhe had collected, the 

three groups of Potawatoarim who used aad occupied the area were 

pol i t ica l ly  autonomow, 

In rerponae t o  a n-er of quertiona from Chief Colrmirrtonet W i t t ,  

Dr .  Voegelin conceded that the Ottawa8 occupied the northern part  of 

the rubject area and the Potmatamis wed and occupied the routbeta 

portion L? that  such occupation was not, in fact ,  joint. Probably aa a 

r e ru l t  of her annrerr t o  Ccnmnissioner Witt'r questions, none of the 

counrel for p la in t i f fe  crore examined Dr .  Voegelin, and her report War 

admitted i n  evidence am Defendant's Exhibit No. 1. 

15. On December 5, 1956, counsel for p l a in t i f f s  i n  docketr 146 

and 1 5 4  joint ly  f i l e d  propoeed findfngr of fact and a brief, Findingo 1 

through 9 were addresred t o  the matter of the r ea l  par t ies  i n  in te rer t  

and in support of t he i r  contention that the 2 9 4  p la in t i f f s  d id  not  reprereat 

the deacendante of any Potmatamis who participated i n  the 1821 Treaty. 

Findings 10 through 16 dealt  with the issue of whether o r  not the treaty 

lands were held by recognized t i t l e  based on the Treaty of Greenville. 

Findingo 17 through 29 deal t  wtth the evidence of exclusive w e  and 

occupancy of the ceded area, including the testimony of D r .  Wallace 

md D r .  Stewart and the doccmente i n  support of that  twtimcmy, with 

an ultimate proposed findins that the Potnt.tol.is c rxc lwin ly  used md 

occupied for a long t h e  prior t o  1821 the oouthern portion of Royce 

Area 117, wtrerealr the Ottawas used and occupied the northern portion. 

In the rccanpanying brief, the Potawatami e n t i t y  question war not di.-aed 

and the imue  of aboriginal w e  and occupmcy,being a purely factual 



matter ,  was discussed only b r i e f l y  on the  bas is  of the evidence and 

the repor ts  of the  expert witnesaes. 

16. February 1, 1957, counsel f o r  p l a i n t i f f s  i n  Docket 2 9 4  

f i l e d  proposed f indings of fact and b r i e f ,  and objections t o  the 

proposed findings of pe t i t ioners  i n  dockets 146 and 15-M. O f  the 22 

proposed f indings of  f a c t ,  only one, No. XVIII, d e a l t  with the i ssue  of 

exclusive use and occupancy of the  ceded area by the claimant t r i b e s ,  

and was i n  the  nature of an ul t imate  finding concluding t h a t  the  Potawatomi 

t r i b e  o r  nat ion was the  predominant land owner, the most numerous i n  

numbers of  the  Indians of the three  d i f fe ren t  nations l iv ing  i n  the  area, 

and t h a t  the  record did not support Chippewa ownership of any of the  

ceded lands. The proposed finding concluded t h a t  the Ottawa t r i b e  

occupied not more than one t h i r d  of the c d e d  area i n  the northern par t  

thereof jus t  south of the  Grand River. Proposed Finding XVIV s t a t e d  

t h a t  the  p r i ce  paid f o r  the land was unconscionable when compared with 

the then Government minimum pr ice  of $2.00 pe r  acre f o r  public landa. 

Finding XX gave the location of the landa and s t a ted  t h a t  the United 

Sta tes  had recognized t i t l e  i n  the Potawatomi Nation, subject  t o  an 

i n t e r e s t  of the Ottawa Tribe of Indians. Finding XXI s t a t e d  t h a t  

p l a i n t i f f s  i n  dockets 2 9 4 ,  146 and 15-M were the owners of two-thirds 

of the  ceded land and were e n t i t l e d  t o  f i l e  the d a b  under the Indian 

Claims Comnission Act of 1946. A11 of the other findings dea l t  with 

the i ssue  of whether o r  not the  Potawatamis were a s ing le  land -in8 

e n t i t y  a t  the time of the  1821 Treaty a s  contended by counsel f o r  

Docket 29-K, o r  were severa l  eeparate autonomous bands of Potawatmi 
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Indians as  contended by counsel in docket8 146 and 15-M and by defendant. 

Counsel objected t o  the propoaed findingr of dockets 146 md 15-M 

which aaaerted that  the land was owned by only a part of 

the Potawatomi Nation or  Tribe whereaa in the view of caunrel for Docket 

29-K the land war owned by a single enti ty,  the Potawatomi Tribe o r  Nation. 

ProposeA Finding 20 war, also objected t o  in  that  counsel for dockets 146 

and 15-M claimed exclusive uee and occupancy of "samewhat =re than 

half the ceded area in  the rauthern portion thereof', cacmral for 

Docket 2 9 4  insisted that  the record supported a finding that  the Potawatomi 

Indian Tribe owned a major portion of the ceded land8 as evidenced by 

the diviaion of the cowideration between the O t t k a  ahd the Po tma tmi  

t reaty parties. The br ie f  war, almost solely devoted t o  arguing the enti ty 

ieaue. 

17. On March 22, 1957, counsel for p l a in t i f f s  i n  docket. 13-M,40-K 

and 18-9 f i l ed  proposed findings of fact  and a br ief .  The findings dealt 

with the i r rue  of the Ottawa and Chippewa Indians aa proper par t ier  t o  

the su i t ,  the issue of recognized t i t l e  t o  the lands in  the par t ier  

p l a in t i f f ,  and f ina l ly  (Findings 11-31) the exclusive use and occupancy 

of the northern part of the ceded area by the Ottawa and (;bgppewas. 

18. On May 20, 1957, defendant filed extensive findingr of fac t ,  

o b j e c t i a n ~  t o  the findings of a11 the p la in t i f f s ,  and a br ief .  Defendat 

arrerted that  only plaintiff .  in  docket. 146 and 15-M were proper patt ier 

in intereat  in  t h i s  l i t iga t ion ;  that  no definable part of Royce Area 

117 i n  Michigan and Indiana war exclusively used and occupied by thore 



parties, and t h a t  there had been no United Sta tes  recognition of t i t l e  i n  

the  pa r t i e s .  The proposed findingo a l s o  re jec ted  the s ing le  e n t i t y  theory 

of counsel i n  Docket 29-K. 

19. On September 20, 1957, counsel fo r  p l a i n t i f f s  i n  146 and 15-M 

f i l e d  a reply  b r i e f  and object ions t o  defendant 's proposed findings 

of fact On the  Potmatomi e n t i t y  issue which was the p r imary  subject  

of the  proposed findings and b r i e f  i n  Docket 2 9 4 ,  counsel f o r  dockets 

146 and 15-M merely s t a t e d  t h a t  the  e n t i t y  issues had been l i t i g a t e d  

before the  Commission i n  dockets 1 5 4  and 71-A and t h a t  the matter was 

pending on appeal before the  Court of Claims. The br ie f  a l so  noted 

t h a t  the Conrmisaion's decision i n  the Miami Tribe. e t  el . ,  v. 

United S ta tes ,  5 Ind. Clam Comn. 180, had been issued r ince  the  f i l i n g  

of  defendant's b r i e f  of May 20, 1957, and had held tha t  the  Treaty of  

Greenville of 1795 recognized t r i b a l  ownership i n  the t r e a t y  Indians t o  

ce r t a in  lands i n  the  Northweet Territory. On the  matter of exclusive 

use and occupancy, counsel found much t o  support t h e i r  cause and t o  

refute defendantla contentions, i n  the  report  of defendant's expert  

witness, D r .  Voegelin. 

20, On September 20, 1957, counsel fo r  p l a i n t i f f  in Docket 29-K 

f i l e d  a r ep ly  b r i e f  again asser t ing  recognized t i t l e  t o  the ceded area 

by v i r t u e  of the  Treaty of  Greenville a s  supplemented by the  1821 cession 

Treaty, and devoted most of the  r e s t  of the  b r i e f  to  arguing the single 

e n t i t y  theory of ownership of Potawatmi lands i n  the Northwest Territory. 

21. On June 2, 1957, the  Colmrission ordered the  d i m i s n a l  of 

the p e t i t i o n  i n  Docket 18-Q in which the  Red Lake Band of Chippewas and 
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other Chippewa8 were p l a in t i f f r .  0x1 January 28, 1958, the other f ive 

petitionera f i l ed  a joint  rtatement that  t he i r  propoaed finding8 be 

coluidered onanded t o  rerolve the werlapping c l a m  betweem the 

Potawatamir and the Ottawar and Chippevar, nylge8ting a dividing l i ne  

between the two grmpr. Defendant objected a t  length t o  t h i r  proporal 

invoking a large amaunt of legal authority t o  which p l a in t i f f r  did not 

reapand. 

22, On June 30, 1958, the ComDirsion issued its decirian on t i t l e  

t o  Royce Area 117, 6 Ind. C1, Comn. 414, The Comieaion noted that  it 

did not need to  decide the recognized t i t l e  imue  inaamrch ar the par t ier  

had adequately ertabliahed that  they had excluaive .use and occupancy o r  

Indian t i t l e  t o  definable area8 of the ceded tract. Based on the 

evidence and expert testimony furnighed by counrel in docket. 146 and 

15-M, and a180 t o  a large extent on the tertimony and report of defendant'# 

expert witneer, D r .  Voegelin, the Comniadon found that  for a t  l ea r t  100 

year8 prior t o  the 1821 t reaty the Potawetomi Indians and the O t t ~ a r  

used and occupied the  ceded t r ac t ,  and that  for  35 years pr ior  t o  the 

1821 t reaty their use and occupancy of aeparate portion8 of the t r a c t  

war  exclusive. The Ccmmieeion did not find particularly shockhg the 

propored agreement of the f ive p la in t i f f r  re la t ive  t o  the divirion 

between the Ottawrre and Potawatamis land holding8 i n  Royce Area 117, 

a d  found no reason why the partiee could not anend the i r  proporad 

flndingr. In Finding 24 defining Ottawa occupancy and w e  and Finding 

25 defining Potawatcmi uae and occupancy, the Coadaeion arrived a t  approsf- 

m t e l y  the same divioion of lmd ,  based upon the record. In i t 6  
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primary f indings on abor ig inal  use and occupancy of the  ceded area,  the  

Conmiasion r e l i e d  on one of the exhibi ts  introduced by counael in  Docket 

29-& i.e.. Exhibit 19, a l e t t e r  fram Schoolcraft t o  the  Secretary of war. 

(mis l e t t e r  was a l s o  introduced by defendant as i t o  Exhibit 55.) 

In its 1958 t i t l e  opinion, the Cotmission held t h a t  the  Potawatmis 

were divided i n t o  five autonomoue bands as of 1821; t h a t  the anceatora 

of the  three groups of Potawatomi pa r t i e s  t o  the l i t i g a t i o n  exclusively 

used and occupied the  southern two-thirds of the ceded area  as descendants 

of the S t .  Joseph Band, and the Ottawas had Indian t i t l e  t o  the northern 

one-third. The Commiseibn concluded tha t  there was no Chippewa exclusive 

use and occupancy i n  the  ceded a rea  in 1821. 

23. On August 15, 1961, counsel for Docket 2 9 4  f i l e d  a motion 

asking the  Comnission t o  amend i t e  June 30, 1958, findings of f a c t  on 

the s i n g l e  vs. mult iple e n t i t y  issue,  and asked permission t o  aubmit 

in  evidence i n  the t i t l e  proceeding newly discovered evidence in support 

of the requested amendments. On Auguet 24, 1961, defendant responded 

t o  the motion as untimely. On August 29, 1961, counsel for p l a i n t i f f s  

in Docket 146 responded t o  the motion noting t h a t  the  e n t i t y  i s m e  raised 

again by cowreel f o r  Docket 2 9 4  waa f i r s t  ra ised  and decided adversely 

by the  Comnieeion i n  4 Ind, C1. Cotrm. 473, affirmed, 143 C t .  Cle 131 

(1958), c e r t .  denied, 359 U.S. 908 (1959), and moved tha t  the Co-isaion 

eeparate the  "par t ies  issue1' from the  main issues i n  the Potawatomf cases. 

on September 5, 1961, counsel for Docket 2 9 4  f i l e d  paper8 explainfng 

&y he had not previously submitted the evidence he then wighed t o  

htroduce in the t i t l e  proceedings, and objected t o  the motion of coun8el 



i n  Docket 146 for separate handling of the "partie8 imaue". Cow~e l  

for  fkcket 2 9 4  r h o  noted that the cars referred t o  a8 having iIready 

decided the en t i t y  1r.w adverrely to.hi8 aingle en t i ty  theory, wa8 a 

care involvfng the Potawatomf land. located weat of the n i . r i8 r ippi  

River, whereas the ina tmt  caee involved landa e w t  of the Mraieeippi  

before the t r i be  war broken up and part of it forced t o  move m a t .  On 

Jawary 26, 1962, the Comni.rion admitted Exhibite 52-105 inclwiva 

rubmittsd by couneel for Docket 2 9 4  md a lso  defendant's additional 

Exhibit 86-V. On December 2, 1964, the motion of Docket 29-11 t o  amend 

the Colll.irrion'a 1958 findings of fact  on the entity irsue was denied. 

24. With regard t o  the primary Imrue i n  the t i t l e  phire of t h i r  

care, i.e., what Indiana exclwively w e d  and occupied definable area8 of 

the ceded land t o  an extent necerrary t o  establish fn them aboriginal 

or Indian t i t l e ,  an iraue which was vigorously contested by defendant 

thrmghout the  t r i a l  and thereafter,  counsel far docket6 146 and 

15-M contributed nearly a11 of the work which reaulted in  the favorable 

decirion that  the Potrwataai Indiana exclusively ured and occupied a 

definable area i n  the aouthern two-thirdr of Royce Area 117. Ttm effort8 

of counrel for Docket 29-K ware devoted exclusivtly t o  establirhing 

the fact that  the Potawatani Indiana were a t  tha t  t h e  a mingle land 

owning ent i ty .  Couruel for dockata 146 .nd 15-M not only submitted 

excellent evidence of P o t m t a n i  exclusive w e  .nd occupancy of 8 defiaablr 

portion of the ceded area, but, fram the report of defendant'. expert  

witneer, Dr. Voegelin, they culled valuable materi.1 in  ~ p p o r t  of 8uch 

excluu.ive w e  and occupancy. Counrel fo r  DDcket 2 9 4  ignored Dr. 



Voegelin's report except t o  dispute her conclusion that  the Potawatamis, 

i n  1821, were not a s ingle  land awning enti ty.  

VALUE P W E  

24. Hearings on the  value of the lands i n  Royce Area 117 were held 

on September 5 through 8, 1961. Acting jointly a t  the t r i a l ,  counsel 

fo r  p l a in t i f f s  i n  dockets 146, 15-M and 40-K, introduced 174 exhibits  

includinp detailed reports of two expert witnesses and two researchers. 

A t  the  commencement of the t r i a l ,  they called as  a witness fo r  the Ottawa, 

Mrs. Mabel Pryor Haag t o  testify concerning abstracts of public land 

s a l e s  i n  the Ottawa part  of the t rea ty  area (joint Exhibit 652) copied 

by her from the records of the General Land Office. Her report included 

dates of sa les ,  amounts of land sold, locations of such land, and the 

sales '  prices. A s imilar  report on Potawatmi lands was prepared for  

counsel for  dockets 146 and 15-M by Thelma W i l l i a m  Whitehowre whose 

deposition concerning her work was introduced in  evidence along with 

her report. 

25. The f i r s t  expert t o  t e s t i f y  for dockete 146 and 15-M was 

Dr .  Helen ICnuth, a his tor ian specializing i n  American history.  Her 

report and her teetimony thereon, both on direct  examination and on 

extensive cross exmination by counael for defendant, deal t  with a l l  

of the usual factors  which the Comnission and the Court of C l a m  urually 

consider in valuing land areas i n  which there have been no salee on 

which t o  base a market value a t  the time of cedeion, Thooe factors 

included, among others, location frw the standpoint of access ibi l i ty  

by land o r  water transportation, the kind of transportation available 
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a t  the time of cerrion and for  a period thereafter,  population data for 

the area generally, the climate, r o i l  c a d i t i a u ,  raiPcrrl content of the 

r o i l ,  the nature of a11 nearby rett lemmts,  the h L w  of public l m d  

rurveyr i n  and around the cersion area, the public land policy of ths 

Uuited State. a r  it might a f fec t  the value of thwe and other public 

l d r  a t  tha t  time, the topography of the land, i t 8  timber rerourcer, 

the kind nf  settlera who c a w  to  live i n  the area, the publicity which 

the limd received i n  the prerr,  the price6 paid for  achool land. and for 

landr granted t o  b i v e r r i t i e r  i n  the area, and the financial  condftioar 

i n  the United States  during the en t i re  period covered by her report. 

26. Dr. J. W. T r y g g ,  a rea l  es ta te  apprairer and a foremtry expert, 

t e r t i f i e d  concerning him report which made rue of Dr. Kwth'n hi r tor ica l  

material, data from the Bureau of Land Xanagemsnt rurveyorr' original 

ruwey p l a t s  and field noter of each township in the area, f igurer an 

public and private land raleo In and a u t ~ i d e  the area, r t a t i r t i c a  on 

climate, natural resourcer, topography, native vegetation, phyrical 

characterlaticr of the area including its waterways, prair ie ,  timbered 

regionr, -amp and maroh land.. Hie report concluded that the land in 

r u i t  war worth $2.00 per acre on the average. The depooittons of hnr 

men who had recorded private land ra les  data wed in him report, were 

introduced i n  evidence. 

27. Dn. Trygg war crors exambed by c o u ~ e l  for  d e f s n b t  a t  

conriderable length. He a l ro  t e s t i f i ed  on redirect  and 4d.n on re- 

crorr  . 
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28. Defendant offered the  testimony and a wri t ten  repor t  o f  its 

expert,  M r .  Paul S t a r r e t t ,  a rea l  e s t a t e  appraiser  from Indianapolis, 

Indiana. Zhe cro8s examination of M r .  S t a r r e t t  war conducted by Mr. 

Johnson f o r  dockets 146, 15-M and 40-K. Mr. S t a r r e t t  was of the opinion 

t h a t  the  ceded lands were worth no more than 20 cents  p e r  acre i n  1822 

when tL- t r e a t y  was proclaimed. On cross examination by M r .  Johnron, 

Mr, S t a r r e t t  admitted t h a t  Zn reaching t h i s  value he had used ealee of 

land which had occurred 35 yeare p r io r  t o  the valuation date  but none 

which occurred a f t e r  1822. 

29,  Counsel f o r  Docket 2 9 4  did  not o f f e r  any evidence on value 

e i t h e r  by way of documents o r  expert witness teetimony, and he did  not 

cross examine the expert witness for defendant. Counsel did move for 

the  introduction in evidence of a number of exhibi ts  having t o  do with 

h i s  s i n g l e  land owning e n t i t y  theory respecting Potawatomi t r e a t y  cessions 

of land from 1795 through 1833, but these exhibits  were not received i n  

evidence a t  t h a t  time, Many of these exhibi ts  had already been admitted 

in other  Potawatomi cases then pending. 

30. On February 19, 1962, counsel for p l a i n t i f f s  i n  dockets 146, 

15-M and 40-K f f l e d  proposed findings of f a c t  and a br ief  on value. 

The proposed f indings were w e l l  organized and contained the neceauary 

references t o  the  exh ib i t s  on which they were based. In the accompanying 

br ie f ,  counsel c i t e d  the decision of the ~ u u r t a f C l a i m s  i n  the caue of 

Miami Tribe, e t  ale, v. United - 9  States  146 Ct. C1.  421 (1959), a8 au thor i ty  

fo r  the Commis8iod s reaching an "estimated" or  "imputed" value for the 



l m d  under the circmnatancea present in thio c u e .  

31. Oa April 13, 1962, ccl luel  for Docket 2 9 4  f i l ed  a doeurn t  

en t i t l ed  "Amsnded and Propored Findingo of Fact i n  Support of Plaintiff.' 

(29-K) Motion t o  h d  Comdorioa'r Finding6 (6 I.C.C. 414); abjecti0- 

t o  Jhfendant'r Uqueated Finding. of Fact (6 I.C.C. 414); O b j e c t i a  t o  

ProporeL Finding of Fact No. 48 on Value (Claimantr, Ikcketr 146 and 

15-M) and Supporting Brief". The requerted anenbentr  t o  the finding8 

of fact  originally propond by Docket 2 9 4  i n  the t i t l e  procedingr, and 

the objections t o  defendant% propored findlngr of fac t  i n  that 8- 

t i t l e  proceedings (defendant had not yet filed proposed findingo of fact  

i n  the value phase of the care), a l l  related t o  the po l i t i ca l  r t ructure  

of the Potawatami Indiana ar a ringle land-awning en t i t y  from 1795 

through 1833 rather than as aeveral separate bandr each w i n g  it8 asm 

landr. Proposed new findings X I I - A  and XII-B a180 involved the 

pol i t ica l  r t ructure  of the Potawatmi Indians. Proposed Finding XXIV 

related t o  the mount and d i r t r i b u t i m  by the Government of the t reaty 

coneiderat ion. Proposed Finding XXV, ent i t led  l'Unconrcionable Comideratim" 

r ta ted  that  the Potmatomi Indians were paid approximately 4 canto per 

acre for the 1821 cerrion; that defendantf s o m  expert witnear on value, 

M r .  S t a r r e t t ,  had given as hi. opinion, tha t  the l.n& were worth 20 

centr per acre; and that  i f  defendantf# 20 cent pe r  acre figure be 

arruned accurate, then a t rea ty  consideration of l e r r  than 25% of tha t  

figure had t o  be unconacionrble. Propored Finding QfVI r ta ted  tha t  in 

1822 the minixmnn rage price for public land waa 91.25 p e r  acre; that the 



t r e a t y  lands were not near any lands which had been sold  up t o  the time 

of the t r ea ty ;  tha t  the  record contained no evidence of " f a i r  market 

va1uetJ on the  bas i s  of comparable s a l e s  i n  the l o c a l i t y  of ,  o r  fo r  the 

type of ,  land ceded; t h a t  the re  was no open market for these lands i n  1822 

and the  only possible p&rchaser' was the Government. The pwpoeed finding ' 

s t a t e 2  t h a t  under these  circumstances the Comniseion must consider $1.25 as  

the minimum pr ice  o r  value of these lands. Cit ing the repor t  of D r .  Knuth, 

the  expert witness f o r  docketr 146 and 15-M, the  proposed finding alao 

s t a t e d  t h a t  the  land was located i n  the  d i r e c t  path of comnercial 

progress, was nearly f r e e  of swamp areas, had good potent ia l  f o r  water 

t ranspor ta t ion  e a s t  and west, had avai lable  overland transportat ion,  

had high qua l i ty  s o i l ,  and t h a t  by the admirsion of defendant's own 

expert witness, 82% of  the  land was of the  f i r s t  and second clase. The 

proposed f inding a l s o  s t a t e d  t h a t  the "other" expert witness ( iden t i f i ed  

i n  a footnote as  D r .  Knuth) had t e s t i f i e d  tha t  92% of the  cession area 

was land of the f i r s t  and second c lass .  This proposed f inding concluded 

t h a t  under the circumstances of the  case it would be f a i r  and reaeonable 

f o r  the Comniseion t o  conclude t h a t  the  value of the  land i n  1822 waa 

$1.75 per acre. Proposed findings XXVII and MNIII re la ted  t o  the  

Potawatomi Indian p a r t i e s  who would be e n t i t l e d  t o  share i n  any award made 

by the Comnission and s t a t e d  t h a t  the p l a i n t i f f s  i n  Docket 29-K were 80 

en t i t l ed .  Proposed finding 48 of p l a i n t i f f s  i n  dockets 146 and 15-M 

aa8 objected t o  insofar  a s  the  finding purported t o  exclude p l a i n t i f f 6  

i n  Docket 2 9 4  from par t i c ipa t ing  i n  the  award. As f o r  defendant% 

proposed findings of  fact on value, which proposed findings had 



yet been f i l ed  v i t h  the CooPnirsion o r  with the part ier ,  camre l  for  

Docket 29-K objected in advance t o  dl euch propoaed findin88 that  

defendant might thereaf ter  f i l e  t o  the extent that  they were incan- 

oimtmt with the propored finding. of Docket 29-I. The brief f i l ed  by 

camre l  for Docket 29-K i n  mpport of th propoaed finding#, etc., con- 

tainad nothing on the  eubject of the value of the ceded lands. Oa the 

matter ok che number of acrer t o  be valued, cormael argued tha t  the land 
1 

granted or rererved t o  individual Potawatomilr under Article 3 of the 1821 

t reaty rhould not be 

according t o  counrel 

received the land, 

32. Ckr May 24, 

on value and lengthy 

deducted fram the acreage t o  be valued becatme, 

for Docket 29-K, the individual8 i n  queation never 

1962, defendant f i l ed  proposed findingo of fac t  

objections t o  the proposed finding8 of counrel 

for docketr 146, 15-M and 40-K. Defendant also objected t o  the 

amendment8 t o  the t i t l e  phaae findings of fact proposed by caunrel fo r  

Docket 29-K, on the pound that  they were not baaed on newly diecwered 

evidence, had already been propoaed by the same counsel in  docketr 7 1 4  

a d  15-3. and were clear ly  out of time. Defendant a l ro  noted tha t  the 

propored mended finding8 dealt  with the ringle en t i ty  land owaing 

theory. Defendant did not rerpond to  the propoaed findiagr of Docket 

29-K on the matter of value. 

33. On August 31, 1962, counsel for Docket 2 9 4  f i l e d  objectianr 

t o  defendant' r requested finding. of fact on value, a reply t o  defendant'* 



objections t o  plaintiff's proposed amended findings of f ac t ,  and a b r i e f .  

On t h e  iesue of value, counsel pointed out t h a t  defendant had not made 

any objection t o  Docket 29-K's f inding of  f a c t  No. XXVI which re la ted  t o  

t h e  value of Area 117, and repeated h i s  argument t h a t  because of defendant's 

own calcula t ion of what the  Government had paid f o r  the land i n  1821 (approxi- 

mately 4 cents  per acre) and the  20 cents  per acre defendant's expert 

witness s a i d  the  land was then worth, the consideration paid had t o  be 

unconscionable. Counsel's object ions t o  defendant's primary findings of 

f a c t  on value were very general,  and h i e  response t o  defendantfa argu- 

ments on the  e n t i t y  i s sue  added nothing new. 

34. On September 3, 1962, counsel f o r  dockets 146, 15-M and 4 0 4  f i l e d  

object ions t o  defendantr s requested findings of  f ac t ,  a reply t o  defendantt@ 

object ions t o  p l a i n t i f f s '  requested findings of f a c t ,  and a reply b r i e f ,  

a l l  on the  i ssue  of value, The object ions t o  defendant's proposed finding8 

were spec i f i c ,  giving record reference i n  support of each objection, The 

th rus t  of the  object ions had t o  do with whether o r  not the  record established 

the f a c t  t h a t  the  land ceded had p o s s i b i l i t i e s  of great  d e s i r a b i l i t y  and 

fu ture  productivi ty which prospective purchasers i n  1822 could reasonably 

have ant ic ipated  both f o r  set t lement and f o r  development of the  lumber 

industry. P l a i n t i f f s  noted t h a t  defendant's proposed findings d id  not 

deal  with t h i s  subject .  They objected t o  defendant 's use of land eaLee 

which took place more than 30 years p r io r  t o  the  t r e a t y  da te  and a t  

times when many purchase8 were made by speculators,  s t a t i n g  t h a t  defendant 

had made no attempt t o  show the  comparability of such sa les  with the 

prospective #a le  of the  land in Area 117. Another area of d i rpute  was 

whether a typ ica l  purchase of the  land would be 



guided by 8peculative pora ib i l i t i e r  or  whether the people vho would be 

expected t o  and did buy the land were farmer. who cmne t o  Mchigm md 

northern Indiana t o  acquire 1-d md t o  r tay  on it. P lak r t i f f r  pohted 

out that  few large tractr were purchued in 117. Counrel mmmred in 

detail  defendant'r objection. t o  the prapoaed f indbaa of p l a h t i f f r  

in  thetw three docketr, rupported by referemcee t o  the record. In the 

brief counsel again argued, gnong other t h i n g ~ t h a t  the 84,480 ac-a 

of land in Area 117 which,under Article 3 of the 1821 treaty,were granted 

t o  individuals, rhould not be deducted fram the acreage t o  be valued 

because thoae grants were made for the purpore of inducfng tha individual# 

t o  bring about the signing of the t reaty by the Indiana and were therefore 

made f o r  the role  benefit of the Government. 

35. On October 11, 1962, the Caamiurion heard ora l  argument an the 

i r rue  of the value of the land in 1822 a t  the time of the proclanmtfon 

of the 1821 treaty. Counrel for  Docket 2 9 4  did not a t  any t h e  addrerr 

hknrelf t o  the value iraue but instead urged the Camnisrioa t o  take 8 

new look a t  the argument6 he had previously advanced on the mingle ent i ty  

ownerrhip theory which he claimed waa applicable t o  a l l  Potuwatani treaty 

ce8rions 05 land frcrm 1795 through 1833. He argued tha t  the 1958 decision 

of the Court of Claim in the Potawatomi c u e  on appeal (143 Ct .  Cl . .  131, 

cert. denied 359 U.S. 905 (1959)), dealt  only with the r ight  of ~ o t m t d  - 
Indiana who had remained eaat of the Mirrirrippi t o  rhare in .war& for  

Po tmtomi  land. acquired weat of the n imiar ippi ,  and that  it@ decirfan 

in the negative war not a ba t  t o  the l i t i ga t ion  of the eingle *r. u l t i p l 8  
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e n t i t y  s t r u c t u r e  of the Potmatomi Indians between 1795 and 1834; i n  

connection with ownershsp and cessions of eaatern Potawatcxni lande. 

Counsel f o r  Docket 40-K made the  pr incipal  argument on value for 

p l a i n t i f f s  i n  t h a t  docket and i n  dockets 15-M and 146. Counsel f o r  

Docket 15-M on behalf of the  other cooperating dockets (not including 

Docket 2 9 4 )  argued t h a t  the  grants  of  land t o  individual Indiana, hal f -  

breeds. chief8 and persons of importance, under the Treaty of 1821, were 

made s o l e l y  t o  persuade them t o  influence the other Indiana t o  consent 

t o  the t r e a t y  disposing of t h e i r  lande, and t h a t  therefore the 84,480 

acres so  granted should not  be deducted from the amount of land t o  be 

valued. Reference was made by counsel t o  the  Court of Claims decision 

i n  the  Miami case, 146 C t .  C1. 421, and t o  the  subsequent act ion of the  

Coomission,when the  case reached i t  on remand,of r a i s ing  i ts  o r ig ina l  

valuation of  the  land i n  Royce Area 99 (Indiana) from 75 cents  per acre 

t o  $1.15 per acre  as of the 1818 t r e a t y  date. He argued t h a t  the land i n  

Royce Area 117 in 1822 was ahown by the record t o  be f a r  more deei rable  

and more valuable than the  Miami lands. 

36. On December 2 ,  1964, the  Commission tssued an order dismissing 

the  p e t i t i o n  i n  Docket 29-K. In the  order the  Comnission amended its 

t i t l e  findings entered i n  1958 t o  conclude t h a t  the  Hannahville Indian 

Cormunity and the  Forest County P o t m a t m i  Comaunity had no connection 

with the  S t .  Joseph Band, a s  would e n t i t l e  them t o  maintain o r  pa r t i -  

c ipa te  i n  claims brought on behalf of the  S t .  Joeeph Band of Potawatomir. 

The Comnission a l s o  amended paragraph 2 of its 1958 opinion and inatead 

held that the  p l a i n t i f f s  in Docket 2 9 4  were descendants of Wfrcon8Ln 



Indiana who had remained e u t  without pemirrion vhem the r e r t  of the 

Potwatomir had moved wrt, In another orderc of the 8-0 date, the 

Comnirmion dented the motion of Docket 2 9 4  t o  larend the June 30, 1958, 

findingarof the Comnirrion. A per curicrm opinion war inrued i n  rupport 

of the order with CollPierioner Scott diraenting on the ground that  the 

p o l i t i c ~ l  r t ructure  of the Potmatomi Indiana a8 a h n d - a m b g  en t i ty  

prior t o  the move wert had not been decided i n  the Court of Claimr 

deciuion reported i n  143 C t .  C1. 131, affirming .a decirion of the 

CoPaPirrion adverre t o  the mingle en t i ty  theory 

Potawatamia. 

37. , On December 23, 1964, the Commiarian 

fact  and opinion on value i n  Docketr 146, 1 5 4  

urged by the e u t e r n  

iarued i t 8  find-@ of 

and 40-K. In arriving a t  

a value of 85 cents per acre for  the ceded land i n  1822, the Com~irrioa 

adopted many of the f indingo and argtonente of counsel in Dockets 146, 1544 

and 40-K and rejected much of defendant ' a  approach t o  valuing the area. 

Conceding that  the land had the potentials claimed for  it by p la in t i f f8  

ar of 1822, the Coamierian did not think that  a prorpective 1822 purcharer 

could rearonably have been mare  of h w  valuable the land w u l d  become in 

20 or 25 yearr. While the Commirrion agreed that  the area waa acceariblr 

t o  r e t t l a r a  and traderr i n  1822, it did not believe the record rupported 

p la in t i f fa '  contention that  i t  war eer i ly  acceraible, par t icular ly  &en 

campared t o  Indian land. which had been previoruly ceded in Indiana md  

Cbio; The hmniraion agreed with p la ln t i f f r  that  92% of the landu were of 

the f i r r t  and aecond c l u e .  k for the lumber value t o  which Mr. h y g g  had 



t es t i fed  and which accounted for a good portion of the value plaint i f fa  

aseigned t o  the land, the CoPanission concluded that the lumber was of 

potential  value in  1822 but did not contribute t o  the 1822 u t i l i za t ion  of 

the area as far as comnercial lumbering was concerned. 

The Ccnmis~iaa held tha t  the highest and best use of the cession 

area was for  farming and that  the land was excellent fo r  tha t  purpoue, 

p r o v i d i n ~  a farmer with pract ical ly  everything he would need t o  subsist. 

The Coprmiasion agreed that  the "Tiffin" survey report on Michigan lands, 

which was derogatory and misleading when published several years before 

the cession, was in er ror  i n  most respecta, but the Comnission was 
I 

persuaded that  the report, which resulted in  the relocation of some 2,000,000 

.acres of mili tary bounty lands from Michigan to  other areas, had the 

unfortunate effect  of discouraging settlement for a f a i r ly  long time. 

The Coxuission also concluded that  the t reaty right of the Indians t o  

continue the i r  use of the ceded area for hunting as long as it remained 

public land, was a further deterrent to  quick settlement. The Corrmission 

accepted the p l a i n t i f f d  theory of arriving at  an "estimated" o r  "imputedtt 

market value in  th i s  case where there W e 8  no actual market a t  the time 

of the cession o r  for several years thereafter, It rejected the argument 

of counsel for  Docket 2 9 4  that  the $1.25 minimum price far public. land8 in  

1822 must be given a great deal of weight in the absence of a market a t  

the time of cession, because the Conmisaion was of the opinion that  the 

record contained abundant evidence from which an estimated o r  imputed 

value could be arrived at. In rejecting the argument of a l l  p la in t i f f8  

that  the 84,480 acres granted t o  individual8 should be included in 

the acreage to  be valued, the Comnis8ion concluded that there grants 



were part of the overall  agreement embodied i n  the t reaty and tha t  i n  the 

abrence of a c lear  rhowing of wrongdoing by defendant i n  making ruch 

grants, there was no rearon not t o  exclude the granted land f r a  the 

area t o  be valued. The Ccmnirrion found the consideration paid uneoa- 

rcionrble and made an interlocutory award baaed oa 85 cents per acre, 

aubject t o  allowable offsets,  

38. KA the value phase of t h i s  caae counrel for docketr 146 md 

15-M did a l l  of the r ignif icant  work in e r tab lhhing  the value of the 

landr ceded by the Potawatcxni Indians. Cotanre1 for  bocket 29-K did nothing 

a t  the t r i a l  which was helpful in the matter o f  the value of the lands, 

and tn hie proposed findings of fact ,  the few which 'could be dercribed a8 

findings relat ing t o  value were ultimate rather than primary finding6 and 

were based on conclueions reached by one of the expert witnerres (Dr. Knuth) 

produced by the counsel for dockets 146 and 15-M. The brief  f i l e d  by 

counsel for  Docket 29-K a t  thia phase of the caae related t o  mattera 

concerned with the "parties isruew of th i s  and other Potawatmi docketr 

not conrolidated in th i s  proceeding, and were of no aseirtance t o  the 

Ccmmirrion tn reaching i t 8  decirion on the value of the ceded landr. 

ENTITY ISSUE 

39. In l a t e  1964, M r .  Robert C. BellB Jr.,  became attorney of record 

for Docket 2 9 4 .  He f i l ed  motions for rehearing of -the ComrLriong r 

orderr denying motions of Docket 2 9 4  t o  admit additional exhibit8 and 

t~ amend the Docket 2 9 4  pet i t ion t o  add other par t ies  p la in t i f f .  

Ihe motions were denied on December 1, 1964. On March 1. 1965, comael fild 

a notice of appeal t o  the Court of Claim from the two orderr of the Cao- 

mission of Dec&er 2, 1964, which denied p l a h t % f f a t  motion t o  md 



1958 t i t l e  findings with respect  to the  p o l i t i c a l  organization of the 

Potawatomi Indiana a s  a single land-owning en t i ty ,  and dismissed the 

p e t i t i o n  i n  Docket 2 9 4 .  The Citizen Band and the P r a i r i e  Band of 

Potmatomi Indians were, together with the United Sta tes ,  appel lees  i n  

t h i s  proceeding (appeal No. 5-65). The appellants  included several  

o ther  dockets i n  which the  eastern Potawatomi Indians were p l a i n t i f f s .  

0x1 Jme 9,  1967. the  Court of Claims rendered a decision (180 C t .  

C1. 477) reversing the  Comnission on the holding tha t  the decision of 

the Comnission affirmed by the  Court of Claima (143 C t .  C1. 131, supra,) 

and involving the western Potawetomi lands, was a bar t o  the  l i t i g a t i o n  

of the  e n t i t y  question i n  cases r e l a t i v e  t o  eastern Potawatomi lands 

ceded between 1895 and 1834, and remanded the cases fo r  a new t r i a l  on 

the e n t i t y  issue.  

40. Hearings on the  p o l i t i c a l  s t ruc tu re  of the Potawetomis from 

1795 through 1833 were held January 18 and December 6, 1968. The three  

groups of p l a i n t i f f s  and the three  groups of counsel involved i n  t h i s  

proceeding par t ic ipated  in  the e n t i t y  remand. A l l  pa r t i e s  presented 

evidence, b r i e f s  and argued ora l ly .  

On March 28, 1972, 27 Ind. C1. C a m .  187, the Comniesion issued an 

opinion and order which, among other  things, required tha t  p l a i n t i f f s  in  

Docket 2 9 4  be re ins ta ted  i n  these proceedings f o r  the purpose of sharing 

i n  the  f i n a l  award. The Couxnission ruled tha t  from 1795 through 1833, 

Potawatomi lands were owned and ceded by a s i n g l e  land-owning e n t i t y ,  

f e e . ,  the  Potawetomi Tribe o r  Nation. The order r e ins ta t ing  Docket 

29-K as a party i n  t h i s  proceeding was not appealed t o  the Court of 



ClaIP., but aeverrl  other pla in t i f fa  in the conrolidated docket. 

affected by t h L  decirion did appeal a d  the rulingr of the Cbmdarirn 

oa the en t i ty  quertion were affirmed. 205 C t .  CL. 765 (1974), 507 

P.2d 852, 206 C t .  C1. 867 (Order of March 7, 1975). 

41. Although the portt ian of cormme1 in  Docket 29-11. persuaded the 

majorit:? of the Comni.8 ion, a t  toraeya for each docket contributed 

equally t o  thir phaae of the l i t iga t ion .  The record indicate8 tha t  comael 

for Docket 2 9 4  rpent f a r  more time on the en t i ty  isrue than did counrel 

for  the other docketr, but a great deal of the work done by couruel for  

Docket 29-K wae duplicative of work done by the ..me counsel in other 

Potawatomi docketr. Purthermnre, much of the time comas1 war merely 

repeating the rgne argument6 over and w e r  again in writ iag and orally. 

In finding that  a l l  c o ~ r e l  made an equal contribution t o  t h i s  phase of 

the proceeding, the Comaiesion takea into con8 iderat  ion the amount and 

quality of the work vhich van actually neceaaarg and. producciw in a u k &  

ing the Coxmiasion in  resolving the conflicting arguments on t h i s  iasue. 

43. On February 19, 1968, the C d a e i o n  severed the claim of 

p la in t i f fa  i n  Docket 4 0 4 ,  and on March 28, 1968, entered a f h a l  

award in t he i r  f a w r ,  19 Lnd. Clr. Comn. 95. The fee for  the a t t o r n a p  

in that  docket i e  not In is rue here. 

OFFSET PHASE 

43. Ch June 7, 1972, defemdmt f i l e d  aa amended anmr alleging a 

t o t a l  of $1,566,432.05 in allowable offaetr t o  be deducted from 

the award for the Potawatomi plaintiff.. Docketr 146 and 15-?! joined 
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i n  f i l i n g  object ions t o  such o f f s e t s ,  and Docket 29-K f i l e d  meparate 

objections. In this phase of the case, a s  in  the  e n t i t y  appeal ,  Mr.  

Robert C. Bell, Jr., acted as at torney of record for p l a i n t i f f s  

i n  Docket 2 9 4 .  On March 1, 1973, counsel f o r  Docket 29-K moved the 

Commission t o  en te r  m a r y  judgment d i s a l l w i n g  a l l  claimed o f f s e t s  on 

the gr-xnd t h a t  the  payment8 asser ted  were made gra tu i tous ly  by the Govern- 

ment from public funds and were a l l  unrelated t o  the  Government's l i a b i l i t y  

t o  the  p l a i n t i f f s  in  the  i n s t a n t  case. Nothg t h a t  the f i n a l  award of 

$2,320,370.70 had been entered e ight  years previously, counsel In 

Docket 2 9 4  argued t h a t  the  isaue of the a l l w a b i l i t y  of theme gra tu i tous  

payments as o f f s e t s  should not  be t r i e d  by the  Comnission because t o  do so 

would fur ther  delay the  payment of the award the  Camnission had found t o  

be due the p l a i n t i f f s .  

In a response f i l e d  March 26, 1973, t o  the  motion f o r  slarmnry 

judgment, defendant pointed out t h a t  there  need be no connection between 

the  f a c t s  supporting the  judgment fo r  the  p l a i n t i f f s  and the nature of 

the al leged o f f s e t s  and t h a t  the lack of such connection should not 

deprive the defendant of the  r i g h t  t o  a t r i a l  on o f f se t s .  Defendant 

a l s o  al leged t h a t  the re  exis ted  material  i ssues  of fact  t o  be t r i e d  i n  

connection with the a l lowabi l i ty  of the alleged o f f s e t s  which precluded 

the granting of Docket 29-K's motion f o r  sunaaary judgment. In a reply 

f i l e d  Apri l  8, 1973, counsel f o r  Docket 2 9 4  again c i t e d  the  long delay 

s ince  the  f i n a l  award a s  a ground f o r  denying defendant an opportunity 

t o  have a t r i a l  on i ts  claim of allowable o f f se t s .  On April 12, 1973, 



the C~nmirrrion bmued an order denying the m t i o n  of Docket 2 9 4  for 

nnmtary judgment. 

44. &I May 29, 1973, counrrel for plaintiff .  in docket8 15-M and 

146 mwed the Commisrion for  an order re t t ing  a p r e h i a l  conference 

on the matter of offaeta. Cauaael pointed out tha t  orny of the c1aL.d 

o f f r e t r  aeserted In defendant'r amended answer had already been adjudicated 

in other dockets and therefore rrhould not have beem aaserted in there 

docketr. On June 21, 1973, counsel for  docketr 15-M and 146 f i l e d  a 

pre t r i a l  memorandum in accordance with the direction of the Caamiadoa. 

Counrel pointed out in the memorandum that  the judment i n  t h i r  case was 

bared upon the Treaty of August 29, 1821, effect ive Wrch 25, 1822, but 

tha t  the defendant had included in its amended answer expenditure8 made 

pr ior  t o  the effect ive date of the treaty. Counsel noted tha t  three offaet 

proceedingr had already been adjudicated in ' t he  Potswatmi carer,  rpecifying 

proceedingr and atat ing that  defendant'r amended answer ignored the 

prior l i t i ga t ion  arrd wee claiming offsets  expresrly ident i f ied in prior  

deciriona ae allowed o r  dirallawed, a s  w e l l  as  other of fse t r  which must 

have been comprehended within the c l a i m  l i t i ga t ed  and therefore not 

the proper subject of l i t i ga t ion  a t  t h i s  time. Counsel specified the 

paragraphs in the amended anawer in  which ruch item appeared. F ind lp ,  

counrel for  dockets 15-M and 146 noted tha t  offreta  had been allowed 

against the judgment for  the Citizen and Pra i r ie  Potawatwir in the 

wertern landr case, but chaz ur s p i t .  - '  :his defendant had Fncluded 

in i t 8  amended answer ofEset claim based on expenditurem rude for the 
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benef i t  of the  Potawatomi Indians who remained e a s t  a f t e r  the Cit izen 

and Pra i r ie  -do had moved west. Counsel urged that  whether or not 

those claims were otherwise va l id ,  they should not  be o f f s e t  against  

the  amount of the  award going t o  the  Cit izen and P r a i r i e  Potawatanis who 

have already been charged f o r  the  expenditures made for t h e i r  specia l  

benef i t .  

43. On June 25, 1973, counsel for Docket 29-K f i l e d  a p r e t r i a l  

memorandum r e l a t i v e  t o  defendant 's claims f o r  o f f s e t s .  Counsel quertioned 

many of the claims f o r  o f f s e t s  contained i n  the defendantf# amended 

answer contending they were c l e a r l y  not allowable under the terms of the 

Indian Claims Commission Act and tha t  others were not allowable because 

unident i f ied  portions of c e r t a i n  expenditures went t o  Indiana other  than 

Po t  awe tomis. 

46. On June 29, 1973,defendant f i l e d  its p r e t r i a l  statement on 

o f fae t s .  On Ju ly  3, 1973, a p r e t r i a l  conference was held with counsel fo r  

a l l  p a r t i e s  present and par t ic ipat ing.  A t  the mnference, with a 

repor ter  present, counsel f o r  Docket 146 referred t o  defendant 's 

amended answer and the supporting exhibi ts  and pointed out a number of 

expenditures which were claimed as allowable o f f s e t s  although they occurred 

pr io r  t o  the  treaty date. As the conference progressed it became apparent 

tha t  the  amended answer should have eliminated many of the expenditures 

l i s t e d  i n  the  GAO repor t  on which i: was baaed, and tha t  the p r e t r i a l  

Statement of defendant should have eliminated those expenditures asser ted  

i n  the  amended answer but c l e a r l y  not allowable a8 of f se t s .  Finally i t  we8 
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agreed that  the t r l a l  on offaeta would take place on ~ ~ e r  15, 1973, 

with the  Oov.rxmeat rervlng i t r  repremmtrtive vtWChtr8 w i t h  backup 

record. on the partiea by October 15, 1973. 

47. On b v d e r  15, 1973, the t r i a l  on offset. war held. The 

Covermmt'r exhibit8 In rupport of c1ak.d offaeta were introduced in 

evidencfi .nd the accountant who waa rerponinibla for  preparing the axhibitr 

war crorr examined by attorney. for  a11 three docketr. Defendant'. 

amnded anawer of June 7, 1972, had alleged o f f w t r  i n  the. 

rum of $1 , 566,432 .OS againrt the interlocutory award of $2,320.370.70 

entered December 

had been reduced 

briefing time of 

23, 1966. A t  the t r i a l  defendant% claimed offreta  

t o  a t o t a l  of $26.484.42. On o an dry 30, 1974, the 

the par t ier  waa r e t  by order of the  Cmmirrion. 

Defendant war required t o  f i l e  requerted finding8 of fact  and brief  on 

offaeta on or  before March 14, 1974. On Match 13, 1974, defendant requertcd 

m a tenoion  of t h e  for  the f i l i n g  of the r epea ted  finding8 of fac t  and 

brief  and counrel for  both group. of p l a in t i f f s  objected, pointing out 

that  the lo88 of i n t e re r t  on the to t a l  award already ~a~ounted t o  more 

than the t o t a l  awunt of o f f r e t r  claimed by defendant. Couaael for  

plaintiff. a11 adviaed the Cbmia.ion that  effort. t o  a r r ive  a t  a comprdae 

on the mount of alloarable of f re t s  had been going on betweem counrel for 

p l a ln t i f f r  and defendant. The r ea rm for  the requerted extearion of 

tima war that these docket. were being reaaalgned t o  another attorney i n  

the Department of Juatice. Ch March 29, 1974, camre l  for  a11 par t ier  

appeared before the C'arrimioner t o  *an the care m a  arrigaed and, with 

a reporter present, they diactused the progrerr which had bean made 
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toward s e t t l i n g  the  matter  of the  amount of allowable offset8.  

48. As a r e s u l t  of the  above conference, defendant's counsel 

proposed a finding of f a c t  t h a t  defendant war e n t i t l e d  t o  o f h e t o  t o t a l i n g  

$23,500.00 representing expenditures f o r  the  Potmatomis i n  the three  

dockets between March 25, 1822,and June 30, 1956, t o  which proposed 

f inding counsel fo r  p l a i n t i f f s  made no objection. On April 19, 1974, the 

Camission entered a f i n a l  award i n  which i t  found and concluded as a 

matter of law, that $23,500.00 was properly allowable as an o f f s e t  under 

Section 2 of the Indian Claims Comnission Act, and tha t  a f i n a l  award of 

$2,296,870:70 was p l a i n t i f f s  i n  sa t i s fac t ion  of a l l  claims presented 

i n  the three dockets, 

49. A t  the o f f s e t  phase of t h i s  case counsel fo r  a l l  three  dockets 

contributed equally i n  reducing the claimed o f f se t s  from $1,566,432.05 t o  

$23,500.00. 

TIME EXPENDED 

50. Counsel f o r  Docket 29-5 produced time records f o r  Walter H. 

Maloney, Sr., one of the  o r ig ina l  attorneye of record, now deceacled, i n  

Docket 29-5. These records indicate  t h a t  he and associated counsel (not in- 

including Mr.  Robert C. Bell ,  Jr., who became associated as counsel i n  these 

cases i n  1964) devoted some 16,475 hours between 1948 and 1964 t o  docketr 

29-5 and 29-K, This time record does not a l loca te  the hours of work 

between dockets 29-5 and 29-K. Cwnsel fo r  docket8 146 and 15-M d id  not 

submit time records. 



PARTIES, NUMBER OP m m  

51. As of December 1, 1960, the R a i r i e  Band of PDtamtooi I n d i m  

had 2,101 members l iving i n  Topka, IUMM and In  Wisconsin. The Citizen 

Band of Potawatani Indians of OCtldroma has a t r i b a l  population of more 

than 11,000 peraone most of whom l ive  i n  the vic in i ty  of Shawnacr, 

(7klrhaam. Approximately 279 l i ve  i n  I l l i no i s ,  Wiacoarin, Michigan and 

Indiana. The record doee not contain evidence on which it is posaible 

t o  errtimate the number of P o t m a t d  Indians who are prerently member8 

of the H a n ~ h v i l l e  Indian Caarmnity, the Forest County Potnratami 

Camunity and the Potawatani Indians of EELchQan, Inc. 

FEE AWARD 

52. The attorney contracts i n  Docket 146 provtded fo r  a fee of 

10% of the final award. In dockets 1544 and 2 9 4 ,  the contract8 provided 

tha t  the fee for attorney servicee should be determined by the  Coambsion 

i n  an amount not t o  exceed 10% of the f ina l  n a r d ,  On the bauia of the 

entire record of the proceedings i n  a11 of there dockets, and In the l ight 

of the responsibilities undertaken by C O U M ~ ~ ,  the d i f f i c u l t  problme of 

fact and law, the  appeal on the en t i ty  issue, the extensive briefings, 

o ra l  arguments and pretrial conferences, a d  based on the foregoing 

findings of  fact  herein, the ComaLssion f i d a  tha t  the a t t o m y  fee 

should be 10% of the f ina l  w a r d ,  o r  $229,687.07. 



CONCLUSION ON APPORTIOlWENT OF FEE 

53. For the  services  rendered i n  prosecuting these claims, the 

Commission f inds  t h a t  the  gross attorney fee  of $229,687.07 should be 

apportioned as follows : 

To Louis L. Roches and Robert S. Johnson, at torneys 
of record i n  dockets 146 and 15-M, respectively, 
on t h e i r  own behalf and on behalf of all contract  
d t o r n e y s  having an i n t e r e s t  i n  the fee  i n  these 
cases (dockets 146 and 15-M), f o r  d i s t r ibu t ion  
by the  at torneys of record t o  such attorneys 
o r  t5eir representat ives i n  accord with t h e i r  
respective i n t e r e s t s  ........................ ....$ 195,234.01 

To' Robert C. Bell ,  Jr., at torney of record i n  
Docket 2 9 4 ,  on h i s  own behalf and on behalf of 
all contract  at torneys having an i n t e r e s t  i n  
the  fee  i n  t h i s  case (Docket 29-K), for dis- 
t r i b u t i o n  by him t o  such at torneys o r  t h e i r  
representat ives i n  accord with t h e i r  respective .... interests. . . . . .  ...........................$ 34,453.06 

The payment of these sums a r e  i n  full sa t i s fac t ion  for  legal services 

rendered t o  the  p l a i n t i f f s  i n  dockets 146, 15-M and 29-K. 


